ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 14, 2012
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 190

"An Act relating to the allowable absence for active duty
service nmenbers of the arnmed forces for purposes of permanent
fund dividend eligibility."

- MOVED CSHB 190( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 33
Uging the United States Congress and the President of the
United States to work to amend the Constitution of the United
States to prohibit corporations, wunions, and individuals from
maki ng unlimted independent expenditures supporting or opposing
candi dates for public office.

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 190

SHORT TITLE: PFD ALLOMBLE ABSENCE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FEI GE

03/ 11/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 11/ 11 (H STA, FIN

03/ 31/ 11 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 31/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 14, 2012



03/ 31/ 11 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 12/ 11 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 12/ 11 (H) Heard & Held

04/ 12/ 11 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 20/ 12 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 20/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 12 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 07/ 12 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 07/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 09/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 09/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 14/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HIR 33

SHORT TI TLE: AMEND U.S. CONST RE CAMPAI GN MONEY

SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARA

02/ 01/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 12 (H STA, JUD

02/ 09/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 09/ 12 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 14/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

M KE PASCHELL, Staff

Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 190 on
Represent ati ve Fei ge, sponsor.

behal f of

M CHAEL BARBER, Assistant Attorney General

Conmmrer ci al / Fair Busi ness Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
190.

DEBBI E Bl TNEY, Director

Central Ofice

Per manent Fund D vi dend Di vi si on
Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 14, 2012



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
190.

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C FEI GE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 190.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 33, as sponsor.

SCOTT ERI C SHAW

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on HIR 33.

PATRI CK KO VI STO

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
hearing on HIR 33.

ROBYN LAUSTER

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Mve to Amend
Anchorage in support of HIR 33.

ROBERT BUCH
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 33.

CHRI STI NA MOUNCE

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified during the hearing on HIJR 33, on
behal f of Move to Arend Juneau.

PATRI CE LEE

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself during the
heari ng on HIR 33.

LARRY HURLOCK

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Hurlock Fam |y
Trust in support of HIR 33.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 14, 2012



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8: 05: 30 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:05 am Representatives Keller, P.
W son, Johansen, Petersen, Guenberg, and Lynn were present at
the call to order. Representative Seaton arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 190- PFD ALLOMABLE ABSENCE

CHAIR LYNN announced that the first order of business was
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 190, "An Act relating to
al l owabl e absences from the state for purposes of eligibility
for permanent fund dividends; and providing for an effective
date."

[Before the commttee was the proposed comm ttee substitute (CS)
for HB 190, Version 27-LS0564\R, Kirsch, 2/3/12, which was
adopted as a work draft on 2/7/12.]

8: 06: 22 AM

M KE PASCHELL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 190 on behalf of Representative Feige,

sponsor. He said the bill would address the issue of allow ng
different groups of people to be absent from the state for
| onger periods of tinme and still receive their permanent fund

dividend (PFD). He said the legislature put in place "a 10-year
rule as a drop-dead provision for the PFD, with the exception of
menbers of Congress and their staff.” He stated the sponsor's
concern is that nenbers of the mlitary are not allowed to
continue to receive the PFD when other individuals serving the

state and country are. M. Paschell said the original bill
concept has been changed to "limt, as well as possible, the
nunber of PFDs that are given out under allowable absences over
an extended period of time," while still addressing the original
intent of the bill sponsor. He said by placing the Pernmanent
Fund Division's restrictions in statute, the state will have "a
stronger set of provisions for evaluating allowable absences
beyond the original five years." He explained, "After five

years, you have to qualify in a nore detailed way to continue to
receive the PFD."

8:08: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the proposed |egislation
would not be heard in the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee,
and he asked M. Paschell to confirm that Legislative Legal and
Research Services pointed out no legal or constitutiona
problems with HB 190.

MR. PASCHELL said that is correct.
8:10: 27 AM

M CHAEL BARBER, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Commercial/Fair
Busi ness Section, Cvil D vision (Juneau), Departnment of Law,
regardi ng Representative G uenberg' s question, stated that he is
not aware of any constitutional or legal problens with [HB 190]
as currently witten.

8:10: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if an amendnent to keep the 10-year
l[imt would cause any enforcenent problens for the Permanent
Fund Di vi si on.

8:11:26 AM

DEBBI E Bl TNEY, Director, Central Ofice, Permanent Fund D vi dend
Di vi si on, Departnent of Revenue, answered no.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if extending the 10-year naximum to
congressional staff would be problemtic. He clarified that
t hat woul d not include nmenbers of Congress.

M5. BITNEY offered her wunderstanding that the division has
"never had congressional staff out that |ong."

8:12: 14 AM

M5. BITNEY, in response to Representative P. WIlson, stated that
the proposed legislation would clarify for the public what the
consi derations of the division would be.

8:13:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG directed attention to the word
"docunentation”, on page 3, line 17, of Version R and ventured
that the word "proof"” would be less limting.

M5. BITNEY said she has no issues with the word "docunent ati on".

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 14, 2012



8:13:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to the chair, explained
that "proof" is "anything that tends to prove a fact,"” including
a docunent or oral testinony under oath.

M5. BI TNEY responded that she doesn't see any problem w th using
the word "proof".

8:14: 53 AM

MR. BARBER offered his understanding that the related |anguage
refers to the initial eligibility determination nmade by the
departnment. He explained that the departnent typically receives
docunentation with the application, and oaths are taken if there
is a dispute, at which point there would be an admnistrative
heari ng. He concluded, "So, | think that 'proof' would be just
fine."

8:15:24 AM

M5. BITNEY, in response to Representative Petersen, said the
division requires travel docunents and has access to various
dat abases across the state, such as voting records and
registration and mlitary payroll records, all of which show
whet her t he person's "decl aration is still Al aska."
Furthernmore, the division takes oral testinony from applicants
and accepts their word "on certain things."

8:17:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C FEI GE, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 190, rem nded the commttee that the original purpose of
the bill was to allow an Al aska resident, intent on returning to
the Al aska upon retirenent, to serve in the mlitary for a full
20-year career and qualify for his/her PFD during that entire
time. He said not many people follow this path.

8:20:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the phrase, "the
departnment shall consider", on page 3, line 23. He said the
| anguage may nean that the list to be considered by the division
is exclusive or that the factors the departnent shall consider
shall include but not be limted to the listed factors. He said

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 14, 2012



he does not like anbiguity in |egislation. He asked, "Wich of
those two is the sponsor's intent?"

8:21:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEIGE indicated that that which the departnent
shall consider is not exclusive. In response to a followup
guestion, he said would accept an anendnent to that point.

8:23: 02 AM

MR. BARBER i ndicated that changing the |anguage to be inclusive
woul d not be probl ematic.

8:23:16 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:23: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
as follows:

Page 3, line 23:
Before "t he departnent”
I nsert "the factors”

After "shall consider"”
| nsert "shall include"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d under Conceptual Amendnent 1, the
| anguage woul d read as foll ows:

(f) To determne whether an individual

i nt ends to return and remai n in t he state
i ndefinitely, the factors the departnent shal
consi der shall include

CHAI R LYNN announced that there being no objection, Conceptua
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

8:24:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
as follows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 14, 2012



Page 3, line 17:
Bet ween "providing" and "to"
Del ete "docunentation”
| nsert "proof"

CHAIR LYNN announced that there being no objection, Conceptua
Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

8:24:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 3, "to
retain the current 10-year limt." In response to Chair Lynn

he indicated that the anendnent could be inserted on page 3,
followwng line 12, of Version R

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
He offered his belief that Conceptual Amendnent 3 would also
i nvol ve deleting Section 3, on page 4, line 15, which read:

*Sec. 3. AS 43.23.008(c) is repealed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 43.23.008(c), which read as
foll ows:

(c) An otherwi se eligible individual who has been
eligible for the imediately preceding 10 dividends
despite being absent fromthe state for nore than 180
days in each of the related 10 qualifying years is
only eligible for the current year dividend if the
i ndi vidual was absent 180 days or less during the
qualifying year. This subsection does not apply to an
absence under (a)(9) or (10) of this section or to an
absence under (a)(13) of this section if the absence
is to acconpany an individual who is absent under
(a)(9) or (10) of this section.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that subsection (a), paragraph
(9), relates to serving as a nenber of Congress; subsection (a),
paragraph (10), relates to serving as staff of a nenber of
Congress; and subsection (a), paragraph (13), relates to soneone
acconpanyi ng another eligible resident. He said he is not
certain how the repeal of AS 43.23.008(c) fits in, but thinks it
shoul d be consi dered al ong with Conceptual Amendnent 3.

8:27:13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that that is why he proposed a

conceptual anendnent. In response to the chair, he said that
Conceptual Anmendnent 3 proposes to retain the current 10-year
limt and expand it to include congressional staff. In response

to a followup question, he clarified as foll ows:

The Congress person elected by the citizens of the
state and sent to Washington, D.C., would be exenpt,
but the congressional staff who have nade a career
choi ce and have decided to go to work Qutside would be
under the 10-year |imt just |ike anyone el se.

CHAI R LYNN sunmari zed that under Conceptual Anmendnent 3, nenbers
of Congress would be the exception, but those who nade the
choice to work for them would be treated just |ike anybody el se
who chooses to go Qutside to work.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that is correct.

8:29:02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he would like to retain the ability
of the congressional staff to continue receiving the PFD
because, although they have made a career decision, they are in

Washi ngton, D.C., working for the State of Al aska.

CHAI R LYNN questioned how many congressional staff nenbers are
currently enpl oyed.

8:30: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recol lected that [Ms. Bitney] had offered
her wunderstanding that no congressional staff ever had served

for over 10 years receiving PFDs. He clarified that there is
nothing in Conceptual Amendnent 3 that would nake soneone |ose
hi s/ her Al aska residency. He stated there are many others who

serve Alaska who are not working as congressional staff, and he
does not think congressional staff nenbers who have nade the
career choice to work in Washington, D.C., should be receiving a
speci al exenpti on.

8:31:25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested dividing the question. He
related that the term "staff of a nmenber of Congress"” is a

technical term He said nost of the tinme congressional staff is
paid by a commttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 14, 2012



8:33:15 AM

M5. BITNEY said the division requests a list of staff nenbers
from congressi onal del egates, but said she would need to do sone
research to determne the criteria for the list.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks "they are very sensitive
about this." He encouraged Ms. Bitney to research the issue.

8:34: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked that the question be divided so
that one question would relate to the 10-year limt, while the
ot her question would relate to whether to expand the linmt to
congressional staff.

8:35:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative P. W] son,
reiterated his explanation of Conceptual Anmendnment 3. He told
Chair Lynn that he does not see the need to divide the question.

8:38: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative P. W] son,
said under HB 190, the five-year provisions currently in
regul ation would be codified; Conceptual Amendnent 3 would not
change t hat.

8:.38:23 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to divide the question.

CHAI R LYNN announced that there being no objection, the question
was di vi ded.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSON expl ai ned that he does not feel
confortable [unping together the issue of the 10-year Iimt wth
the issue of renoving the exenption from congressional staff.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON withdrew his notion to adopt Conceptual
Amrendnent 3.

8:39:16 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendrment 4, to
retain the current 10-year limt on allowable absence. There
bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 4 was adopt ed.

8:39:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 5, to
i nclude congressional staff in the 10-year limt related to
al | owabl e absences.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG o0bj ect ed. He stated that he feels
strongly that congressional staff nenbers are serving Al aska.

8:40: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said congressional staff nenbers are

required to live far from Alaska to do their jobs, and he opined
that they should not be punished for that.

8:41. 44 AM
A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Seaton and Keller
voted in favor of Conceptual Anmendnent 5. Represent ati ves

Pet er sen, Johansen, P. W/Ison, Guenberg, and Lynn voted agai nst
it. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 5 failed by a vote of 2-5.

8:42:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSSS HB190, Version 27-
LSO564\ R, Kirsch, 2/3/12, as anended, out of conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSSSHB 190(STA) was reported out of
t he House State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

8:43: 03 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:43 a.m to 8:46 a.m

HIR 33- AMEND U. S. CONST RE CAMPAI GN MONEY

8:46: 32 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 33, Uging the United States Congress and
the President of the United States to work to anend the
Constitution of the United States to prohibit corporations,
unions, and individuals from nmaking wunlimted independent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 14, 2012



expenditures supporting or opposing candidates for public
of fice.

8:46: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Al aska State Legislature, presented HIR
33 as sponsor. He stated that elections should be deci ded based
on ideas and how hard a candi date works; however, he said since
[the U S. Suprene Court ruling on] Ctizens United v. Federal
Election Commission, 180S. C.876(2010) ("Citizens United"),
el ections have been influenced nore and nore by outside noney.
He said Citizens United affects independent expenditures - noney
"not coordinated with a candidate"” but spent in support of or
opposition to a candi date. He gave exanples of l|arge sunms of
noney being given by individuals and corporations to influence
the outconme of elections. Representative Gara said there used
to be limts on canpaign contributions and independent
expenditures, but currently the following is allowed: unlimted
i ndependent expenditures from corporations, unions, and groups,
and unlimted political expenditures from outside groups.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the intent of HIR 33 is to rally other
states to pass resolutions for Congress to propose a
constitutional amendnent to place a |limt on outside nobney, so
that people will have a clearer voice on the |ocal |evel. He
said the anount of noney spent on independent expenditures rose
from$37 mllion in 2006 to $210 million in 2010.

8:50: 06 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that there is a limt to
what an individual and a political action conmttee (PAC) may
contribute to his canpaign, but no Iimt to what a "super PAC
may contribute [in support of or in opposition to an issue].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that is right. He said candidates in
Al aska have a little nore protection because the State of Al aska
passed a disclosure | aw a couple of years ago.

CHAI R LYNN offered his understanding that the state's disclosure
law requires the nane of the top three contributors in a super
PAC to be disclosed. He remarked that no matter how good a
candidate's canpaign, a mllion dollars spent against that
canpaign can end it.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA said that is true. He said nore
inmportantly, people are represented in Congress on the big

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 14, 2012



i ssues of the nation, and when people are allowed to influence
el ections with unlimted noney, "the noney decides who wins the
el ections.™ He reiterated that a canpaign should be won by
i deas rather than by noney.

8:53:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GARA, in response to Chair Lynn, sai d
i ndi vidual s, corporations, unions, and environnmental groups, and
other interest groups are now allowed to nake wunlimted
i ndependent expendi tures. He explained that the court now
considers groups to be persons and has deci ded that the canpaign
contributions of individuals cannot be limted. He said, "If
all 50 states have sone different idea on how they should [imt
t he amount of noney, it will still send the nmessage to Congress

that the anount of noney has gone out of control."
8: 56: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to Representative Keller, said
prior to Citizens United, corporations and unions in Al aska and
many other states were limted on what they could donate. Also
prior to Citizens United, he relayed, there was a ruling in
Buckley v. Vallejo, in which individuals could make unlimted

contributions for independent expenditures. He reiterated that
i deas, not noney, should be the focus. He opined that people
shoul d have their voice in the political system In response to

Representative Keller, he said he thinks that federal disclosure
requi renents are weak, but they could be stronger if Congress
made them so. He noted that Congress alnost passed a |aw
simlar to the aforenentioned disclosure |law of Alaska, but it
failed by one vote. He said part of the [U S. Suprene Court]
decision allowed the governnent to require disclosures, but the
| evel of government was not defined.

8:58:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said there are two issues before the
comm ttee: free speech rights and [canpaign contribution]
l[imts. She opined that [HIR 33] is "a very poor solution to a
very conplex problem" She said there are other solutions, for
exanple, asking all the other states to "do what Alaska has
done. " She indicated that the other options could be tried

rather than asking for an amendnment to the U.S. Constitution.

9:00: 39 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said requiring disclosure will not stop the
flood of noney that conmes into the political system He said
there is no support in the federal government for a disclosure
I aw. He stated that the unlimted expenditure of noney cannot
be stopped w thout an anmendnent to the U. S. Constitution.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON ventured that any advertising is
consi dered negative by sone and not by others. She tal ked about
targeting the nedia to require themto state only facts instead
of "slanting things the way they do." She said, "I just think
that this is the wong way to go about doing what you want to
do."

9:02: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to [page 2, lines 8-
10], which read as foll ows:

VWHEREAS, while not addressed by the United States
Suprene Court's ruling in Ctizens United, unlimted
i ndependent expenditures nmade by individuals also
distort the political process and ability of al
Anerican citizens to have an equal voice in
gover nnent ;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said corporations have the sole duty to
make noney; therefore, their expenditures are based on their
duty to shareholders, which is a different matter than the free

speech of an individual. He said he is concerned that the
sponsor has wapped these two issues together. He asked the
bill sponsor if he has considered excluding individuals fromthe
bill | anguage.

9:05: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that individuals were allowed to
make unlimted independent expenditures based on a case prior to
Citizens United. He said he understands Representative Seaton's
poi nt, but reenphasized that noney is noney, and when soneone
dunps $5 to $10 nmillion into a canpaign, he/she makes other
people's voices snall. He said he would be thrilled if group
and corporation contributions were limted to what they were
prior to Citizens United, so he could accept the renoval of
individuals, if that was the wish of the commttee.

9:06: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN pointed out that the nmedia is owned by
corporations, and their bottomline is to sell papers. He said
he does not agree that "this is an inproper way to voice our
opi nion," although he said he does not agree with it.

9:09: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to |anguage on page
1, lines 6-8, which read as foll ows:

WHEREAS a vast mmjority of Anericans recognize
t hat the influence of large contributions by
corporations, wealthy individuals, and organizations
harns the ability of average citizens to have a voice
in their own governnent, and;

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN then pointed to |anguage on page 2,
| ines 8-10, which read as foll ows:

VWHEREAS, while not addressed by the United States
Suprene Court's ruling in Ctizens United, unlimted
i ndependent expenditures made by individuals also
distort the political process and ability of al
Arerican citizens to have an equal voice in
gover nnent ;

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHANSEN proffered that | arge i ndependent
expenditures do not affect his ability to cast his individual
vot e.

9:10: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said Anerica lives under |aws decided by
U.S. Congress and the President, and big noney put into special
interests gets the attention of Congress. In response to
Representati ve Johansen, he said there is a |ot of noney on both
sides of the Pebble Mne issue, but focus of HIR 33 is limted
to i ndependent expenditures for or agai nst candi dates.

9:11:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN expl ai ned that he brought up the Pebble
M ne advertising as an exanple of mllions of dollars being
spent to bonbard people wth nessages. He offered his

understanding that the sponsor is saying that this kind of
expenditure overwhelns the ability of the individual voter to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 14, 2012



retain his/her single perspective and "waters down an
i ndi vidual's vote."

9:14:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if groups |like the Anmerican
Federation of Labor - Congress of Industrial O ganizations (AFL-
ClO and the National Education Association (NEA) would be
i ncl uded under HIR 33.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said unions would be included, no matter
their ideology, because |arge independent expenditures distort
the political process.

9:15:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted that every "WHEREAS' portion of
the proposed joint resolution [that nentions corporations and
i ndividual s] also nentions unions, with the exception of one:
the first "WHEREAS' on page 1, lines 6-8 [text provided
previ ously]. He said he would like unions included in every
"WHEREAS" instead of, or in addition to, wusing the word
"organi zati ons".

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to the chair, said he would
accept an anmendnent to that effect.

9:17: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to the second
"WHEREAS", on page 1, lines 9-12, which read as foll ows:

WHEREAS the narrow five to four decision of the
United States Suprene Court in Citizens United v.
Federal Election Comm ssion, 130 S. C. 876 (2010),
allows corporations and wunions to make unlimted
i ndependent expenditures supporting or opposing a
candi date for public office; and

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he would like the word "narrow'
removed, because he said it inplies "we're really close to

flipping it."
9:18:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Representative P
Wl son's previous coment, explained that the basis for Ctizens

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 14, 2012



United was the First Amendnment to the U S. Constitution, and the
only option that could have an effect on that decision would be
to anend the Bill of Rights. He further commented that the
nmedi a enj oys broad personal freedom

9: 20: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to Representative Keller, said
he |ooked for information showing what affect Ctizens United
has had on Al aska, but was unable to conpile them He said his
bi ggest concern is the national scene. 1In response to a follow
up question, he offered his belief that [since the Ctizens
Uni ted decision, he has seen nore independent expenditures nade
in canpaign fliers.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he thinks the disclosure at the
bottomof flier is sufficient.

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that it is not always apparent by the
name on bottomof the flier who the people behind the nane are.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that is a good point. He said there
are "six mllion corporations out there," and he expressed
concern that the proposed resolution would target themall.

9:23: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON remarked that even if the Constitution
i s changed, newspaper corporations would still be able to "slant
things" wthout spending a lot of noney to do so. She

reiterated that she thinks the proposed resolution is the wong
way to address the issue.

CHAIR LYNN talked about the ability of a newspaper to put out
totally accurate information, but with a slant.

9:24:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that in both the title of HIR 33 and
the second "WHEREAS' portion on page 1, lines 9-12 [text
provi ded previously], the words, "supporting or opposing

candidates for public office" appear; however, those words do
not appear in the "BE IT RESOLVED' portion, on page 2, lines 11-
14, which read as foll ows:

BE IT RESCLVED that the Al aska State Legislature
urges the United States Congress and the President of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 14, 2012



the United States to work across party lines to
propose a constitutional anmendnent to prohibit
corporations, unions, and individuals from making
unlimted i ndependent expenditures.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered his understandi ng that the sponsor
said HIJIR 33 is addressing expenditures supporting or opposing
candi dates for office, not broad topics or "other expenditures
in the public arena.” He said the resolve does not support that
idea, and asked the bill sponsor if he is confortable wth
addi ng "supporting or opposing candidates for public office" in
the "BE I T RESOLVED' part of the joint resolution.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he believes "that's what i ndependent
expenditures neans,” but said he would have no problem if that
| anguage was added.

9:26:21 AM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, regarding the |anguage on page 1,

lines 6-8 [text provided previously], said she thinks stating
that "the ability of average citizens to have a voice in their

own government” would be harned is an insult. She opi ned that
the average citizen is "smart enough to realize what's going on
or, at least, to nake ... [his/her] own decision.” She said she

thinks the average citizen has a voice in governnment, and what
"they" are doi ng does not change that.

9:27:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that the only reason that people
flood the airways with political advertisenents is that they
effectively influence voters. He said he does not think it is
derogatory to say that nost people don't have the tinme to |ook
into all the issues and, thus, get nuch of their information
through political advertisenents. He said he is not always
happy with the nedia, but thinks that trying to regulate it
woul d cause troubl e.

CHAIR LYNN comented that many people wll vote for the
candidate they last saw in an advertisenent on the way to the
pol l'i ng pl ace.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON posited that because the Citizens
Uni ted decision was nmade | ess than two years ago, it is too soon
to make statenents based on the effect of that decision.

9: 30: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 14, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to Representative G uenberg,
clarified that the definition of independent expenditures is
"noney used by an outside group to help elect or defeat a
candidate.” He said if the coonmttee chooses to add | anguage to
the bill regarding noney spent on political issues, he would not
cause him "a lot of heartache"; however, he said that issue is
not what Citizens United was about.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested including "a nodifier phrase
to refer to political candidate phrases,”" because nost people
will not wunderstand the I|imted definition of "independent
expendi t ure".

9:34: 34 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that he woul d begin public testinony.
9:34: 52 AM

SCOTT ERIC SHAW testifying on behalf of hinself, opined that
HIR 33 is a step toward ridding elections of corruption. He
said it is clear to him that corporations are intangible
entities, not persons, and that noney is property, not speech.
He offered his understanding that the U S. Suprene Court has
"recommended that we do anend the First Anmendnent."”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. Shaw if he feels the sane way
about uni ons and environmental groups as he does corporations.

MR. SHAW answer ed yes.
9:36: 27 AM

PATRI CK KO VI STO, testifying on behalf of hinself, stated that
he thinks the population of Alaska is so low that [HIR 33] could
help the state project the voices of Al askans. He echoed the
remarks of the sponsor regarding the effect of the nmedia on
vot es. He indicated that nmedia influenced the outcome of the
past el ection race between Scott Adans and now U.S. Senator Lisa
Mur kowsKki . He opined that renoving "individuals" would
underm ne the proposed joint resolution.

9:38:31 AM

ROBYN LAUSTER testified on behalf of Mve to Amend Anchorage.
She stated that since the Citizens United decision, the vol ume

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 14, 2012



of advertisenents paid for by outside groups has increased by
over 1,600 percent, and the spending on those advertisenents by
those groups has increased by nearly 1,300 percent. She said
super - PACs, cor por at i ons, uni ons, and individuals spending
nearly unlimted funds on elections skew the results of those
el ections and underm ne denocracy.

M5. LAUSTER said this issue is non-partisan; it is about [trying
to have] a fair elections system She said advertising is not

al ways truthful. She stated that without a reversal of the
Citizens United ruling, it wll be inpossible to pass |aws
regul ating elections to correct these injustices. She posited

that by law, corporations are required to put their bottom |ine
first, which nmeans they probably do not consider the public
good.

MS. LAUSTER said she believes in a governnent "of the people, by
the people, and for the people.” She stated that the current
situation of corporate personhood granted by the court has
positioned governnent-created entities to have greater power
than the sovereign citizens of the U S., and an anmendnent to the
US Constitution is necessary. She said Mve to Anmend
Anchorage supports HIR 33 and urges the comrittee to nove it
out . She noted that she had brought a letter [dated 2/9/12

included in the commttee packet] in support of HIR 33, signed
by twel ve [ Move to Anend Anchorage] nenbers.

9:40: 53 AM

ROBERT BUCH, noted that he was a forner representative in the
Al aska State Legislature. He indicated that the inpetus for
Citizens United started in the 1800s, and what began then ended
with corporations being determned to secure protection under

the First Amendnent. He relayed another result of the Ctizens
United decision was that independent expenditures are now
protected under the First Anmendnent; therefore, noney is now
"equated to free speech.” In response to a previous renmark by

Representative P. WIlson, he said there are other nethods to
address this issue being considered by sonme states; however, he
said he thinks HIR 33 is an appropriate vehicle to bring
information to the public.

MR. BUCH quoted a book entitled, The Road to the Whitehouse, as
follows: "N nety-four percent of those with the nost noney were
elected to the US. Senate and the U S. Congress.” He stated
that when only those with noney are elected to office, then "al

of us" are subject to where that noney is directed. He said a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 14, 2012



great nmany people in the country are dissatisfied. M. Buch
stated that corporations are not people - they don't have
feelings - but they have been given an unlimted way to
i nfluence elections. He said, for exanple, that Mtt Romey and
Rick Santorum each have a key person backing them financially.
He said this issue is not one-sided; both parties "will be
taki ng advantage of this" and "those in the mddle class are
bei ng crushed.”

MR. BUCH relayed that a web site, opensecrets.org, shows that
corporate politi cal contri butions in 2012 t ot al ed
$1, 317,977,729, whereas [contributions nade by] wunions totaled
| ess than 10 percent of that anount, at $92, 355. 686. He stated
that unions have the sane ability, but do not have the sane
avai lability of cash as corporations do; therefore, the
i nfluence of unions is not as great as that of corporations. In
response to a question from the chair, he confirned that he is
part of Move to Amend Anchor age.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he does not agree with M. Buch's
comment that corporations have been given an unlimted way to
influence. He indicated that could be true only if one presunes
that voters are "too dunb to be able to follow the noney." He
said there are disclosure laws in place.

9:47:56 AM

MR. BUCH asked Representative Keller to consider what the public
is supposed to learn if only one view is put forth. He said
that is what is happening. He said this issue affects federal,
state, and | ocal elections.

9:49: 28 AM

MR. BUCH, in response to Representative Johansen, indicated that
he does not know who funds opensecrets.org. In response to a
followup question, he said there is no neasure of what the
advertising represents; "they" are not held to any standards.
The public may or may not be aware of that, but they are still
i nfluenced by that advertising. |In response to a final question

from Representative Johansen, he said he does not discrimnate
bet ween one corporati on and anot her.

9:52:59 AM

CHRI STINA MOUNCE testified on behalf of Mve to Anend Juneau.
She explained that there are many chapters of Mve to Anmend

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 14, 2012



around the state, as well as across the nation. She said the
m ssion of Mwve to Anend is to amend the U S. Constitution to
limt the anmount of noney corporations can spend on elections

Currently, she said, the political climate is one in which
voters are bonbarded by comercials and advertising either
supporting one candidate or putting down another. Follow ng the
Citizens United decision, she related, nearly $4 billion was
spent during the 2010 Congressional El ecti on, conpl etely
eclipsing the $1 billion spent prior to the Citizens United
deci si on. She reported that according to the Center For
Responsible Politics, in the congressional races of 2010, the
candi dates who spent the npbst nobney on their canpaigns won 85
percent of the House seats and 83 percent of the Senate seats.
She said Citizens United has given politicians wth the nost
corporate support the upper hand in elections. She said anyone
can vote and anyone can run for office; however, currently the
playing field is not even. She stated, "By allowing unlimted
canpaign contributions, the political system has essentially
been rigged against hard working Americans who can't afford to
conpete with for-profit corporations, unions, special interest
groups, and wealthy individuals.” She said passing HIR 33 would
show Alaska to be a state whose representatives support fair
canpaigns and are dedicated to representing the average
Ameri can. In response to Chair Lynn, she offered her
understanding that there is no one organi zational force behind
the Move to Amend groups. She said she organizes the group in
Juneau.

9:56: 09 AM

PATRICE LEE, testifying on behalf of herself, said she would
like the conmttee to not get bogged down by details regarding
what "average citizen" nmeans and how nuch influence nmedia has or
does not have. She said the endl ess anount of noney bei ng spent
could be put to better use supporting hospitals and schools, for
exanpl e. She said, "I'd just like to see us get back to
somet hi ng that makes nore sense.”

9: 58: 33 AM

LARRY HURLOCK testified on behalf of the Hurlock Fam |y Trust in
support of HIR 33. He said he thinks harm is done to the
investor in his/her role as a citizen. He said he expects
investors to spend their tinme on production, pronotion, and
distribution, not to act as proxy on matters of governnental
sovereignty, especially because nodern corporations are "captive
of managenment due to dilution of the ownership of corporate

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 14, 2012



stock and shares."” He said it bothers him that |arge conpanies
are able to hide expenditures from their sharehol ders. He
gquoted U.S. Supreme Court Justice Anthony Kennedy as stating,
"Sharehol ders can determ ne whether the corporation's political
speech advances the corporation's interest in making profits.”
He used Archer Daniels Mdland Conpany (ADM as an exanple of
di scl osure. He nentioned a sharehol der proposal and read from
the ADM Board's "proxy agai nst the resolution” as foll ows:

In addition to the disclosures nandated by |aw, ADM
voluntarily reports the aggregate anounts of ADMSs
contribution to political parties and candi dates.

MR. HURLOCK said disclosures are hidden in the aggregate; they
are hidden in plain view He said the average person does not
know what his/her conpany spends on anything. He said he is
conpetent on the conputer, but after 15 m nutes searching, could
not find aggregate disclosure on ADMs web site. He said, "I
find this very objectionable in ny role as a citizen investor."

10: 03: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered his understanding that Myve to
Amrend is a group, which is narromy focused on nmaking the point
that corporations can make unlimted expenditures, and it does
not address any other part of the ruling by the U 'S. Suprene
Court.

10: 03: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said M. Hurlock has "hit the nail on
the head," and he said he would like himto cone back before the
commttee the next tine HIR 33 i s heard.

10: 04: 49 AM

[ HIR 33 was hel d over.]

10: 05: 11 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:05
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 14, 2012



